
www.eden.gov.uk Rose Rouse
Chief Executive

Date: 6 March 2019

Town Hall, Penrith, Cumbria CA11 7QF
Tel: 01768 817817
Email: cttee.admin@eden.gov.uk

Dear Councillor E Martin 

Communities Portfolio Holder Meeting Agenda - 14 March 2019
A meeting is to be held with Officers at 9.30 am, on Thursday, 14 March 2019, in the 
Deputy Director Technical Services Office, Mansion House, Penrith to consider the 
following matters:

1  Declarations of Interest  

To receive declarations of the existence and nature of any private interests, both 
disclosable pecuniary interests and any other registrable interests, in any matter to 
be considered or being considered.

2  Eden Valley Artistic Network Service Level Agreement  (Pages 3 - 12)

To consider report TES13/19 of the Assistant Director Commercial Services which 
seeks to provide grant funding to Eden Valley Artistic Network over a three year 
period to be funded from existing budgets held by the Communities Portfolio Holder.

RECOMMENDATION that financial support of £5,000 per annum is provided to the 
Eden Valley Artistic Network over a three year period starting from 1 April 2019 
which will be monitored by an agreed Service Level Agreement.

Yours sincerely

Rose Rouse
Chief Executive

Democratic Services Contact: 

Encs

For Attention

Portfolio Holder – Councillor E Martin



www.eden.gov.uk 2

For Information by Email to: - All remaining Members of the Council



Report No:  TES13/19

Eden District Council
Communities Portfolio

14 March 2019

Eden Valley Artistic Network Service Level Agreement
Portfolio: Communities Portfolio

Report from: Assistant Director Commercial Services

Wards: All Wards

OPEN PUBLIC ITEM

1 Purpose
1.1 To provide grant funding to Eden Valley Artistic Network over a three 

year period to be funded from existing budgets held by the 
Communities Portfolio Holder.

2 Recommendation
It is recommended that financial support of £5,000 per annum is 
provided to the Eden Valley Artistic Network over a three year period 
starting from 1 April 2019 which will be monitored by an agreed Service 
Level Agreement.

3 Report Details
3.1 Eden Valley Artistic Network (EVAN) is a collection of individuals, 

organisations and venues established to promote and support artistic 
endeavours in the Eden Valley area.

3.2 EVAN is a Community Interest Company which is a form of limited 
company and exists to benefit the community rather than private 
shareholders.

3.3 The proposed Service Level Agreement (SLA) with EVAN is attached 
as Appendix A to this report. The SLA sets out a framework for the 
working relationship between Eden District Council and EVAN.  The 
SLA is a commonly and successfully used form of agreement that the 
Council has in place to oversee relationships with a range of groups 
and organisations in Eden. The current funding arrangements are 
highlighted, together with the responsibilities of each partner under the 
agreement.  The commitments under the SLA seek to link the work of 
EVAN to the Council’s priorities and provides the means to set targets 
in key performance areas.

Page  3

Agenda Item 2



3.4 The key priorities and activities EDC requires from the SLA are as 
follows:

 Two Art Trails that include Open Studios, evening events and 
installations across Eden are developed and delivered. The Art 
trails will aim to engage at least eighty artists for each of the 
trails and will look to be delivered from at least thirty different 
venues across the District. The effectiveness of their 
development and delivery in engaging artists and welcoming 
visitors will be monitored and reported to the District Council on 
a biannual basis. The report will highlight visitor numbers and 
the revenue generated. It is expected that the numbers will 
increase on a year on year basis throughout the SLA term.

 Development and co-ordination of a minimum of six 
entertainment events performed by local artists within the District 
but outside of Penrith. All events will seek to generate increased 
visitor numbers for the areas they are held in and monitoring of 
the events success will be detailed in the biannual report. 

 The EVAN website and Facebook page will be developed and 
expanded to provide more content aimed at supporting grass 
roots artists and existing EVAN members. The website will also 
be used to promote arts and culture led events and projects 
throughout the District.

3.5 The proposal is that the Council agrees to pay an amount of £5,000 in 
the 2019/20, 2020/21 and 2021/22 financial years on the basis of 
successful delivery of the content of the signed SLA. The success or 
otherwise of the agreement will be monitored through biannual 
meetings and progress reports will be developed to be shared at 
informal meetings of the Communities Portfolio Holder. 

4 Policy Framework
4.1 The Council has four corporate priorities which are:

 Decent Homes for All;
 Strong Economy, Rich Environment;
 Thriving Communities; and
 Quality Council

4.2 This report supports the corporate priority to create a strong economy 
and rich environment.

5 Consultation
5.1 EVAN have been consulted on the proposed commitments contained 

with the SLA and are supportive of its content. 

Page  4



6 Implications
6.1 Financial and Resources
6.1.1 Any decision to reduce or increase resources or alternatively increase 

income must be made within the context of the Council’s stated 
priorities, as set out in its Council Plan 2015-19 as agreed at Council 
on 17 September 2015.

6.1.2 The finance associated with the recommendation within the report can 
be met from a previously agreed growth item which included a 
recurring budget up to 2021/22. 

6.2 Legal
6.2.1 There are no legal implications arising from this report.
6.3 Human Resources
6.3.1 There are limited Human Resources implications arising from this 

report as it is considered minimal officer time will be needed to oversee 
and monitor the agreement.

6.4 Statutory Considerations

Consideration: Details of any implications and 
proposed measures to address:

Equality and Diversity There are no equality and diversity 
implications arising from the report.

Health, Social 
Environmental and 
Economic Impact

The funding provision would support the 
development of local artists which should 
lead to a positive cultural and economic 
impact in Eden.

Crime and Disorder There are no crime and disorder 
implications arising from the report.

Children and 
Safeguarding

There are no child protection implications 
arising from the report.

6.5 Risk Management

Risk Consequence Controls Required
That there is 
insufficient 
monitoring of the 
funding.

The funding is not 
used for its intended 
purpose.

The Service Level 
Agreement will be 
monitored 
biannually.

7 Other Options Considered
7.1 The option to not provide funding for EVAN has been considered and 

due to the benefits that the funding will bring to the District this option is 
not preferred. 

8 Reasons for the Decision/Recommendation
8.1 To provide a level of surety of funding to EVAN to be able to carry out 

the activities contained at point 3.4 of the report. 

Page  5



Tracking Information

Governance Check Date Considered
Chief Finance Officer (or Deputy) 28 February 2019

Monitoring Officer (or Deputy) 4 March 2019

Relevant Assistant Director 28 February 2019

Background Papers: None
Appendices: Appendix A - EVAN-SLA-2019-2022-January-
2019
Contact Officer: Yvonne Wells, Economic Development Support 
Officer

Page  6



                   

Eden District Council and Eden Valley Artistic Network

Service Level Agreement 
April 2019 to March 2022

Purpose

Eden District Council provides grant aid to local community groups and 
voluntary organisations to enable a wide range of services to be provided for 
local people and to support the local economy.  By working in partnership with 
other local groups/agencies, it ensures that we are all working towards the 
same goals and enhancing the quality of life in the area.

The Council provides grant funding to Eden Valley Artistic Network to support 
the organisation to deliver arts and cultural events throughout Eden with a 
particular focus on events outside of Penrith.  The funding the Council 
provides will enable Eden Valley Artistic Network to be involved in initiatives in 
Eden that thrive and respond to local need. In return, the Council looks to the 
Eden Valley Artistic Network to provide added value to the delivery of its 
services and to assist the Council in reaching its Vision, ‘To best serve the 
people of Eden’. 

This Service Level Agreement sets out the basic things that the Eden Valley 
Artistic Network and the Council will do.  This agreement will commence on 01 
April 2019 for a three year period, terminating on 31 March 2022.  

Eden Valley Artistic Network

The purpose of Eden Valley Artistic Network (“EVAN”) is to be a network of 
individuals, organisations and venues established to promote and support 
artistic endeavours in the Eden Valley area. EVAN is a Community Interest 
Company which is a form of limited company and exists to benefit the 
community rather than private shareholders. 

Page  7



Specific goals of the Eden Valley Artistic Network include:

 to support the development of local artists, creating pathways to 
progress

 to provide opportunities for local artists to show and market their work, 
connecting them with the local and tourist communities

 to create opportunities for networking and socialising
 to provide a professional development scheme for local working artists
 to provide a mentoring scheme for artistic endeavour

The priorities and activities that the Council requires from the SLA are as 
follows:

 Two Art Trails that include Open Studios, evening events and 
installations across Eden are developed and delivered. The Art trails 
will aim to engage at least eighty artists for each of the trails and will 
look to be delivered from at least thirty different venues across the 
District. The effectiveness of their development and delivery in 
engaging artists and welcoming visitors will be monitored and reported 
to the District Council on a biannual basis. The report will highlight 
visitor numbers and the revenue generated. It is expected that the 
numbers will increase on a year on year basis throughout the SLA 
term.

 Development and co-ordination of a minimum of six entertainment 
events performed by local artists within the District but outside of 
Penrith. All events will seek to generate increased visitor numbers for 
the areas they are held in and monitoring of the events success will be 
detailed in the biannual report. 

 The EVAN website and Facebook page will be developed and 
expanded to provide more content aimed at supporting grass roots 
artists and existing EVAN members. The website will also be used to 
promote arts and culture led events and projects throughout the 
District.

SLA Funding

The Council agrees to pay an amount of £5,000 in the 2019/20, 2020/21 and 
2021/22 financial years on the basis of successful delivery of the content of 
the signed SLA.  

Page  8



Commitments under the Service Level Agreement

Eden Valley Artistic Network

In addition to the above activities Eden Valley Artistic Network will:

 Acknowledge the Council’s financial support in the Annual Accounts, 
Reports, material used for publicity purposes and when undertaking work 
on behalf of the Council, this may sometimes take the form of applying 
Eden District Council’s logo to promotional material where appropriate.

 Ensure that its actions are reflective of the Council’s commitment and 
obligation to promoting equality and diversity between groups in the local 
community.

 Eden Valley Artistic Network will provide feedback to the Council via 
biannual monitoring reports.

Eden District Council 

As part of the SLA the Council will:

 Promote the Arts and Culture sector.
 Keep Eden Valley Artistic Network informed of any organisation/structural 

developments.
 Provide three months’ notice if the grant is to be reduced or removed and 

provide the actual figure of reduction wherever possible. (Best Value 
Statutory Guidance September 2011)

 Provide a named contact to deal with general issues.  This will be the 
Economic Development Support Officer and in their absence the 
Economic Development Manager will be the main contact.

 Arrange liaison meetings biannually.

Monitoring

This agreement will be monitored biannually. Failure to adequately meet the 
outcomes required within this agreement may lead to the removal of the whole 
or part of the grant agreed. 

Both organisations agree to consult each other before introducing any 
changes likely to impact on this agreement.

Page  9



Confidentiality

Both organisations agree to respect the confidentiality of information shared 
between them and not to disclose any information to third parties without the 
prior approval of the other organisation.

Responsible Officers

Oliver Shimell (Assistant Director Planning and Economic Development, Eden 
District Council)

Signed …………………………………..  Date………………….

Simon Whalley (Eden Valley Artistic Network)

Signed …………………………………..  Date………………….

Page  10



Third Party Data Protocol

As a public service, Eden District Council requires reliable, accurate and timely 
information to manage services and account for performance.  For decisions made in 
respect of information provided to be reliable, there has to be confidence in the data.

Good quality data is essential and Eden District Council needs assurances that the data 
provided by external partners/organisations is of a high quality.

Data Quality Requirements

Characteristics Eden District Council Requirements 

Completeness Data quality systems should include monitoring to ensure the completeness of the data 
being provided.  Monitoring should take place to assess for missing data, incomplete 
data and invalid records

Accuracy Data should be sufficiently accurate for its intended purposes.  Accuracy is most likely 
secured if data is captured as close to the point of activity as possible.  The need for 
accuracy must be balanced with the importance of the uses for the data and the costs 
and effort of collection.  For example, it may be appropriate to accept some degree of 
inaccuracy where timeliness is important.  Where compromises have to be made on 
accuracy, then this needs to be made clear to the recipient of the data.

Validity Data should be recorded and used in compliance with relevant requirements, including 
the correct application of any rules or definitions e.g. any definitions specified by a 
Government body/Audit Commission.  Any changes in definitions/requirements should 
be made clear to the recipients of the data.  This will ensure consistency between periods 
and with comparisons with other organisations using similar data.  Where proxy data is 
used to compensate for an absence of actual data, this must be made clear to the 
recipients of the data so that consideration can be given as to how well the proxy data 
satisfies the intended purpose.

Reliability Data should reflect stable and consistent data collection processes across collection 
point and over time, whether using manual or computer based systems.  Reliability can 
be ensured by having data controls in place such as sample checks on data input into a 
system, sample checks on data output from a system, are the correct timeframes being 
used, are definitions/other specified requirements being adhered to, can ‘peer challenge’ 
be introduced within the process?

Timeliness Data should be captured as soon as possible after the event or activity and must be 
available to the recipients for the intended use within a reasonable and agreed 
timeframe.  Data must be available quickly and frequently enough to support information 
needs and to influence the appropriate level of service or management decisions.

Relevance Data Capture should be relevant to the purposes for which it is used.  This should involve 
periodic reviews with the recipient of requirements to reflect changing needs.

Organisation Name: 

Page  11



……………………...………………………………………………………………………

Responsible Person: 

……………………………….………………………………………………………………

The data supplied to Eden District Council from the named organisation, meets the criteria 
outlined above:

Signed …………………………………………………………….   

Dated …………………..…….………….

Page  12


	Agenda
	2 Eden Valley Artistic Network Service Level Agreement

